

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: If everyone could turn their cellphones to vibrate and we are encouraging social distancing, here in Council Chambers. With a quorum being present, the Chair calls this meeting of Canton City Council to order. Roll call please, Mr. Clerk.

10 COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: (WILLIAM SMUCKLER, JAMES BABCOCK, CHRISTINE SCHULMAN, GREG HAWK, BRENDA KIMBROUGH, JASON SCAGLIONE, CHRIS SMITH, KEVIN HALL, JOHN MARIOL & PETER FERGUSON)

TEN COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT. (MEMBER FISHER AND MEMBER MORRIS ABSENT)

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten present, two absent, Mr. President.

EXCUSING MEMBERS

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we excuse Member Fisher and Member Morris from tonight's meeting.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to excuse Member Fisher and Member Morris from this evening's meeting. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Member Fisher and Member Morris are excused from this evening's meeting. Tonight's invocation will be given by Ward 2 Council Member, Brenda Kimbrough. If you would all please stand and remain standing for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The regular meeting of Canton City Council was held on June 21, 2021 at 7:00 P.M. in the Canton City Council Chamber. The roll call was taken (see above) by Clerk of Council, David R. Dougherty. The invocation was given by Ward 2 Council Member, Brenda Kimbrough. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by President Sherer.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Member Kimbrough.

AGENDA CORRECTIONS AND CHANGES

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Agenda Corrections and Changes, Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move Rule 22A be suspended to add 2nd Readings of Ordinances 11 through 14 to this evening's agenda.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to suspend Rule 22A to add 2nd Readings to Ordinances 11 through 14 to this evening's Agenda. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Ordinances 11 through 14 are a legal part of your agenda.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Public Hearings and we no ...have no Public Hearings for this evening.

OLD BUSINESS

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Old Business and there is no Old Business for this evening.

PUBLIC SPEAKS

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Public Speaks and we have three speakers for this evening. Our first speaker is Karen Zutuli? ...Zutali. Sorry about that. If you could please step forward and give us your name and residential address, please. And I would like to remind our speakers that you have three minutes. And thank you for coming tonight.

KAREN ZUTALI: Thank you. My name is Karen Zutali and since 1998 I've resided at 1215 16th St. NW, Canton, Ohio. In the summer of 2020, a half-grown pit bull escaped the yard of 1214 17th St. NW, while I was visiting my 92-year-old neighbor on 16th St. This dog came on our porch and began jumping on her. Fortunately, I was able to get the dog to leave. On October 2, 2020, another dog escaped from the same yard and was milling around at my back door. On March 3, 2021, three pit bulls escaped and were running around the neighborhood. The Sheriff was called. The dogs remain with the owner. Since last summer, the Sheriff has been called at least three times regarding these dogs. The Canton Police have also been called. In May of 2021, as I was going for my daily walk, enable ...a neighbor pulled up in her car and told me to get in because two pit bulls had gotten loose. One had bitten another neighbor who called police and filed a report. On June 12, 2021, yet another dog escaped. As my son was going out to his truck, it barked and charged at him, resulting in him barely making it into the house and the dog on my back stoop. I called the Canton Police and filed a report. I have often counted five or more grown dogs with at least two being a female. I have noted that one is always pregnant while the other is actively nursing a litter. During this time, I have never seen a pit bull's chain; I have not seen collars on them. Because my garage and yard are behind this house, I must contend with these dogs on a daily basis. I cannot enjoy my yard because I fear these dogs getting loose. Through talking to my neighbors, I know there have been other incidents with these dogs that I have not witnessed. Daily, I drive down 17th St. to gain access to my garage. I drive slowly because children are often playing in the area. I would guess there are thirty or so living within a couple blocks of these dogs. The children are playing ball, riding bikes, drawing on the sidewalks with chalk, and riding motorized Segway-like boards. Because the dogs are not properly restrained or trained, it is only a matter of time before a child is attacked and maimed. I've been told that because of COVID, it is harder to evict people and that come June 30, 2021, there will be a change in the law. That means it will be several weeks or more before evictions would take place. Weeks in which the dogs could

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

attack again and again. I've been told to try to get video and pictures, but that is a bit hard when you are running for your life. I have been told that dogs are considered property and are hard to remove from the owner. Well, so are guns. But if a gun owner is negligent with her gun property, there are consequences. These dogs are unpredictable, dangerous, four-legged, property that are allowed to continue to threaten the safety and lives of the neighborhood, both old and young. I've been told that laws cannot be made to ban a breed of dog, but I believe that the laws regarding any type of dog that threatens and attacks can be significantly strengthened to prevent the endangerment of residents. Finally, if my neighborhood was one of our city's prestigious areas, with prominent citizens, I doubt this dangerous situation would have been allowed to continue for over a year. I believe it would have been resolved at the first call. Before the unthinkable happens, I am asking that the Canton city leadership act quickly and decisively to ensure the safety of everyone in my Northwest, working-class, neighborhood. Thank you and I do have a couple pictures, if you want them.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Ms. Smith...Member Smith. Actually, if you could pass them to Member Smith and uh ...she will pass them around, please. And thank you for coming this evening. Our next speaker is Ms. Kimberly Bell. Ms. Bell, could you please step forward and give us your name and residential address, please.

KIMBERLY BELL: Yes, Kimberly Bell. Um...1733 Morris Avenue, Canton, Ohio. Yeah, I want to bring up some past issues and some current issues. The first issue is the guns that I've been ...you know ...now that I've got a place, I'm in ...I'm living in the Mahoning Manor and I'm asking the Mayor to come over in that area and look. My neighbor, she has a bullet still in her wall. But the gun violence in that area is terrible. I mean, the police came ...when I report it ...the police came one day, they sat there for an hour in the parking lot and I haven't seen them since. That was back in the end of Febru ...no, around the first of March, after the shooting with the officer and ...the S.W.A.T. officer and whoever and then the vic ...the guy who shot the officer, he died later. But I haven't seen the police there since I made the report. I mean, you ...when ...when the issue with me and the white woman, they surrounded the whole building. They were there within fifteen seconds, but they can't come out there and ...and monitor the parking lot or the guns being shot off at night. There's kids running around all day long in Mahoning Manor. I mean, that's all I'm asking, just to come and make 'em...make Metropolitan put cameras up there. I mean if a police officer got shot ...I mean ...from somebody who wasn't supposed to be on the property, then if a police officer gets shot, what do you think is gonna happen to one of those kids that's running around when the bullets start flying? Uh ...another thing ...I've got so much going on here. Oh, oh yeah, let me ...let me talk about this. You, you, you ...I don't ...I know ...you don't have any ...probably don't have a lot to do with who ...who appointed Mike ...Mike Crawford at the ...at the ...out at uh ...Hall of Fame Village, but I'm pretty sure you didn't have to go all the way, or wherever you went, in Pennsylvania, or wherever he was ...you could have found somebody local to do the job he's doing. He don't need no money. From everything I've read about him, you could have found a black man that's local to do the same job that he's doing. Mayor, it's time for you to start putting ...giving us contracts. I have a cleaning business. Start giving us contracts or recommending us for contracts that's out there at that Village. Don't give it to the people that already ... that ...Steve Coons and all them who already have money. We have construction companies. We have cleaning businesses. Start recommending us for those contracts. And ...and ...and stop going outside of the ...the ...the ...um ...tell the Hall of Fame ...stop going outside the circle to find help. It's help right here in town.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Ms. Bell. And our last speaker for the night is Mr. John Stone. And Mr. Stone, you can take your mask off to speak, if you wish.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

JOHN STONE: Oh, but I like my mask! (*Laughter*).

PRESIDENT SHERER: Very well. It looks good.

JOHN STONE: And there's a reason for this mask ...so ...

PRESIDENT SHERER: Mr...and could you please state your name and residential address, please ...

JOHN STONE: ...Yes, my name is John Stone and I reside at 1220 17th St. and I'm here to talk about history that maybe Canton is not really ...uh ...as aware of as they should be. So I'd like to pass these around, if you could ...make sure everyone gets one of those. So, first my question would be, what is history? And not to wait for an answer, I will answer and say that history is only what we are aware of and we chose to recognize. And so there are a lot of things that happen that maybe we're not aware of and so we don't chose to recognize. So, for example, in 2010, a group of kids, the Ulster Project from Northern Ireland, planted a garden to represent infinite peace in Nimisilla Park. Nimisilla Park, being the oldest park in Canton, it really quite literally was the heart of Canton's growth. And so, what happens in the heart affects the body. So, interestingly enough, a bench turned up missing and the garden was mowed over in 2017. And I kept saying, you can't mow over infinite peace. If you do, you're essentially mowing over everyone and everything connected to it. Some people couldn't see that and everything that it was connected to, including the kids from Northern Ireland who planted it. But, in 2018, with the help of Mayor Bernabei and Doug Foltz, our then new Park Director, we replanted that garden and when we did, this amazing sunflower tower grew there. It was 11-foot-tall and see how it has blooms facing in every direction when most sunflowers have a bloom at the top that faces the sun. This one has blooms in every direction. So, the idea is that we're actually spreading seeds of infinite peace from the infinite peace garden in the heart of the heartland, Nimisilla Park, in Canton, Ohio. And inviting people around the world to plant and photograph them as they grow and hashtag "Infinite Peace Garden." And we start weaving this idea of growing infinite peace around the world. And this is already growing outside of Canton. That's why I'm here, because I think Canton needs to be more aware of this. Uh ...these seeds have made it as far as Indonesia. This picture on my mask was from ...Cedar Point allowed us to plant some under the corkscrew before pandemic hit and one ...this picture is actually part of their 150th Anniversary Book now spiraling out to the world. I just gave an interview with a teacher from Spain in a virtual called *Second Life.com* where (*Inaudible*) are being featured. So, it's growing whether we are aware of it or not and I'm asking all of you ...and I'm asking all of you to be a part of growing this movement. Just by planting these seeds, photographing them and sharing pictures online as they grow. Hashtag "Infinite Peace Garden" and more and more people will get onboard. I had a great time on Saturday sharing spots in Nimisilla Park at the Juneteenth. (*Inaudible*) got more hugs than I expected. And I say that with a tear in my eye. Thank you.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Mr. Stone.

INFORMAL RESOLUTIONS

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Informal Resolutions and we have one for this evening. Mr. Clerk, would you please read Informal Resolution #18, by title.

16. COUNCIL-AS-A-WHOLE: RECOGNIZING RON BLOOMBERG FOR HISTORICAL VALUE AS FIRST DESIGNATED BASEBALL HITTER AND PHILANTHROPY IN RAISING MONEY FOR THURMAN MUNSON SCHOLARSHIP FUND. – ADOPTED

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader Smuckler.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Resolution #18.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Informal Resolution #18. Are there any remarks?

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Majority Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: This coming Friday night, the ...Ron Bloomberg will be in town to raise money for the Thurman Munson Scholarship Fund to help perpetuate kids being able to go to college that can't afford it. There is a dinner at Skyland Pines. Um ...right now they're hoping to get about two hundred people there to help raise money for this. I know some of you are already going. I will be presenting this Monday night and ...um ...it's a good cause. And those of you ...the tickets are still available ...those of you that can go. Doors open at 5:00, dinner starts at 6:00.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Are there any additional remarks? And I would agree with the Majority Leader. It is a good cause and uh ...anytime we can support children in our community to go to a higher education, it's a good thing. Hearing no additional remarks, by voice vote, all those in favor signify by saying aye. Those opposed no.

NO REMARKS

RESOLUTION #18 PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY VOICE VOTE

PRESIDENT SHERER: The ayes have it, the motion carries and Informal Resolution #18 is adopted.

COMMUNICATIONS

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Communications. Let the journal show that all Communications are received as read.

NOTE: ALL COMMUNICATIONS WHICH FOLLOW, LISTED BY AGENDA TITLE, ARE ON FILE IN THEIR ENTIRETY IN THE COUNCIL OFFICE.

191. ANNEXATION CHAIRMAN HAWK: REQ LEGISLATION FOR STATEMENT OF SERVICES FOR SKYLAND PINES 2021 ANNEXATION. – ANNEXATION COMMITTEE
192. AUDITOR MALLONN: ADJUST MIN/MAX PAY GRADE RANGE FIGURES TO INCREASE SALARY MIN/MAX FOR GRADES 001-SA-SALARY AUDITOR AND 002-SA-SALARY AUDITOR BY 3% FACTOR TO ALLOW FOR 3% MERIT INCREASE. – FINANCE COMMITTEE
193. AUDITOR MALLONN: ADJUST MIN/MAX PAY GRADE RANGE FIGURES, SUBSEQUENT TO 3% MERIT INCREASE, AN ADDT'L 4.075% FOR GRADE 002-SA-SALARY AUDITOR. –

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

FINANCE COMMITTEE

194. CHIEF OF POLICE ANGELO: RPT OF DEPOSITS AND PAY-INS TO AMBULANCE LOCK BOX FOR MAY 2021. – RECEIVED & FILED
195. CIVIL SERVICE DIRECTOR SLIMAN: AMEND NON-BARGAINING PERSONNEL ORDINANCE TO ADD FULL-TIME CIVIL SERVICE GENERALIST POSITION. – PERSONNEL AND FINANCE COMMITTEES
196. COURT ADMIN KOCHERA: AUTH MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AGMT WITH STATE OF OHIO, DEPT OF REHAB & CORRECTION (ODR&C) FOR RECEIPT OF FY 2020-2021 JUSTICE REINVESTMENT & INCENTIVE GRANT (JRIG) PRETRIAL GRANT IN AMT OF \$380,401.00 COMMENCING 7/1/21 THRU 6/30/23. – FINANCE COMMITTEE
197. DEPUTY MAYOR WILLIAMS: AUTH MAYOR AND/OR SERV DIR TO ENTER INTO FUNDING AGMT WITH ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INSTITUTE, INC. (ECDI, INC.) IN AMT NOT TO EXCEED \$1,150,000.00 UTILIZING AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) FUNDS FOR ADDT'L SMALL BUSINESS RELIEF GRANT PROG FOR CANTON BASED BUSINESSES. – FINANCE AND COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEES
198. HEALTH COMMISSIONER ADAMS: REQ \$8,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF FUND 2322 – DENTAL SEALANT TO FUND 2322.301001 DENTAL SEALANT: 700 – OTHER DIRECT COSTS. – FINANCE COMMITTEE
199. HEALTH COMMISSIONER ADAMS: REQ \$44,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF FUND 2328 – PUBLIC HEALTH INFRASTRUCTURE TO FUND 2328.301019 – COVID 19 STIMULUS: 700 – OTHER DIRECT COSTS. – FINANCE COMMITTEE
200. LAW DIRECTOR BATES AYLWARD: APPROVE EDITING AND INCLUSION OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES ADOPTED FR 8/24/20 TO 4/5/21 TO BE INCORPORATED INTO CANTON CODIFIED ORDINANCES; AUTHORIZE LAW DIR TO DISTRIBUTE COPIES OF 2020-2021 CITY CODE SUPPLEMENT TO PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS FREE OF CHARGE AND AFFIX PRICE OF \$9.50 FOR SALE OF SAME TO HOLDERS OF CITY CODE. – JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
201. MAYOR BERNABEI: ADVISE OF APPT OF MR. JOEL DANIEL HARRIS TO CANTON CITY PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENCING IMMEDIATELY TO 12/31/22. – RECEIVED & FILED
202. SERVICE DIRECTOR HIGHMAN: REQ \$822,200.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 5201 WATER FUND TO 5201 202058 – 36TH STREET NW STORM, ROADWAY, WATER AND SEWER PROJECT FUND – OTHER (PHASE II). – FINANCE COMMITTEE
203. SERVICE DIRECTOR HIGHMAN: AUTH MAYOR AND/OR SERV DIR TO ENTER INTO MULTIYEAR AGMT WITH STARK COUNTY FOR LEASE OF PROPERTY LOCATED

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

ADJACENT TO STARK COUNTY COURTHOUSE; AUTH MAYOR AND/OR SERV DIR TO ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD AND ENTER INTO CONTRACT FOR LEASE OF CITY OWNED BLDG AT 215 W TUSC ST AND SUBLEASE FOR ADJACENT COUNTY OWNED REAL PROPERTY FOR PURPOSE OF OPERATING RESTAURANT/SNACK BAR, MANAGING ICE RINK AND OTHER RELATED PURPOSES; AUTH AUDITOR TO DRAW WARRANTS UPON RECEIPT OF VOUCHERS. – FINANCE COMMITTEE

204. SERVICE DIRECTOR HIGHMAN: AUTH ODOT TO CONSTRUCT STA-US30-16.46/STA-SR43-10.74, PID 110615, GP 1368 (RT 30 PAVING AND BRIDGE WORK) PROJ; AUTH MAYOR AND/OR SERV DIR TO ENTER INTO AGMT WITH ODOT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF SAID PROJ PER ATTACHED SAMPLE LEGISLATION. – PUBLIC SAFETY & THOROUGHFARES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

205. SERVICE DIRECTOR HIGHMAN: AUTH ODOT TO CONSTRUCT STA-US62-24.90/STA-SR153-3.15, PID 112748, GP 1357 (ROUTE 62 PAVING) PROJ; AUTH MAYOR AND/OR SERV DIR TO ENTER INTO AGMT WITH ODOT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF SAID PROJ PER ATTACHED SAMPLE LEGISLATION. – PUBLIC SAFETY & THOROUGHFARES AND FINANCE COMMITTEES

ORDINANCES AND FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR FIRST READING

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their First Reading. Mr. Clerk, would you please begin with Ordinance #1.

NOTE: PRESIDENT SHERER CALLED UPON CLERK DOUGHERTY TO READ ORDINANCES #1 THROUGH #10 FOR THEIR FIRST READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW, AS FOLLOWS:

- O#1. (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$14,000.00 APPROP TRF FR 2351 301001 FOOD PROTECTION PROGRAM – 600 PAYROLL TO 2351 301001 FOOD PROTECTION PROGRAM – 700 OTHER)
Referred to Finance Committee
- O#2. (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD, AND EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION OVERSIGHT SERVICES FOR THE VIOLA ESTATES SANITARY SEWER PROJECT, G.P. 1336; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AUTHORIZING THE AUDITOR TO PAY ALL MORAL OBLIGATIONS FOR RELATED PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF CONTROL PURSUANT TO CANTON CODIFIED ORDINANCE 105.14; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$462,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

BAL OF 5413 SEWER REPLACEMENT FUND TO 5413 206323 VIOLA ESTATES
SANITARY SEWER PROJECT, GP 1336 – OTHER)

Referred to Finance and Environmental & Public Utilities Committees

- O#3. (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO ADVERTISE TO ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD, AND EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND ENTER INTO A WORK LICENSE/EASEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE WHEELING & LAKE ERIE RAILWAY COMPANY FOR THE BURNHAM HILLS SANITARY SEWER REALIGNMENT PROJECT, G.P. 1220; AUTHORIZING THE AUDITOR TO PAY ALL MORAL OBLIGATIONS FOR RELATED PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF CONTROL PURSUANT TO CANTON CODIFIED ORDINANCE 105.14; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$200,000.00 APPROP TRF FR 5410 202010 ENGINEER – DAILY OPERATIONS – OTHER TO 5410 206318 BURNHAM HILLS SAN SWR PROJ, GP 1220 – OTHER)

Referred to Finance and Environmental & Public Utilities Committees

- O#4. (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD, AND EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE PARKRIDGE CIRCLE NW WATER MAIN EXTENSION PROJECT; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$260,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 5201 WATER FUND TO 5201 207076 PARKRIDGE CIRCLE NW WATER MAIN EXTENSION PROJECT - OTHER)

Referred to Finance and Environmental & Public Utilities Committees

- O#5. (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 155.07, INVESTING INTERIM MONEYS OF CHAPTER 155 OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Referred to Judiciary Committee

- O#6. (1ST RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 120/2021** AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF OHIO, DEPARTMENT OF REHABILITATION & CORRECTION FOR THE RECEIPT AND APPROPRIATION OF THE FY 2022-2023 COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS ACT GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF \$341,208.00 AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY

Referred to Finance Committee

- O#7. (1ST RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 121/2021** AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF OHIO, DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH & ADDICTION SERVICES FOR RECEIPT OF THE FY 2021 SPECIALIZED DOCKET SUBSIDY-ADDENDUM GRANT IN

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

THE AMOUNT OF \$40,000.00; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$40,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 2797 SPECIALIZED DOCKET GRANT FUND TO 2797 701001 SPECIALIZED DOCKET GRANT – PERSONNEL)

Referred to Finance Committee

O#8. (1ST RDG) **ADOPTED AS RESOLUTION NO. 122/2021** A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STATEMENT OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED TO THE PROPERTY OWNER IN THE SKYLAND PINES 2021 ANNEXATION AREA, THE APPROXIMATE DATE SERVICES WILL BE PROVIDED, PROCEDURE TO RECONCILE INCOMPATIBLE ZONING USES UPON ITS BEING ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF CANTON, OHIO; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY

Referred to Annexation Committee

O#9. (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE NO. 100/2011, AS AMENDED, THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR NON-BARGAINING UNIT PERSONNEL EMPLOYED BY THE CITY OF CANTON; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (CIVIL SERVICE GENERALIST)

Referred to Personnel & Finance Committees

O#10. (1ST RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 123/2021** AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$44,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 2328 PUBLIC HEALTH INFRASTRUCTURE TO 2328 301019 COVID-19 STIMULUS – 700 OTHER DIRECT COSTS)

Referred to Finance Committee

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: At this time, the Chair would declare an in-house recess for Finance and Annexation Committees to meet in regards to Ordinances 6, 7, Resolution 8 and Ordinance 10 on your agenda this evening. You are now in recess.

(COUNCIL RECESSED AT 7:21 PM FOR THE FINANCE AND ANNEXATION COMMITTEES TO DISCUSS O# 6, O#7, RE#8 AND O#10; RECONVENED AT 7:26 PM)

PRESIDENT SHERER: Council is reconvening after the recess. Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we suspend Rule 22A to place Ordinances 6, 7 and Resolution 8 and Ordinance 10 back on this evening's agenda.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to suspend Rule 22A to place Ordinances 6 and 7, Resolution #8 and Ordinance #10 back on this evening's agenda. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Ordinances 6 and 7, Resolution #8 and Ordinance #10 are a legal part of your agenda. Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we suspend Statutory Rules of Ordinances 6 and 7, Resolution 8 and Ordinance #10.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to suspend the Statutory Rules on Ordinances 6 and 7, Resolution #8 and Ordinance #10. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: You've heard the three readings, Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #6.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #6. Are there any remarks under this Ordinance? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#6 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 120/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Ordinance #6 is adopted. Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #7.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #7. Are there any remarks under this Ordinance? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#7 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 121/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Ordinance #7 has been adopted. Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Resolution #8.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded that you adopt Resolution #8. Are there any remarks under this Ordinance? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#8 ADOPTED AS RESOLUTION NO. 122/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Resolution #8 has been adopted. Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #10.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #10. Are there any remarks under this Ordinance? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#10 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 123/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Ordinance #10 has been adopted.

ORDINANCES AND FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR SECOND READING

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their Second Reading. Mr. Clerk, please ...would you please begin with Ordinance #11.

NOTE: PRESIDENT SHERER CALLED UPON CLERK DOUGHERTY TO READ ORDINANCES #11 THROUGH #14 FOR THEIR SECOND READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW, AS FOLLOWS: (ORDINANCE #14 ADOPTED AS AMENDED)

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

- O#11 (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 22884 – 22886 AND PART OF LOT 22887; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (PARCELS 208807, 208806 & 209039 @ 400 BLOCK OF CRESTMONT AVE SE, WARD 4, FOR HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
- O#12. (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF OUTLOT 984; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (PARCEL 246349 @ 3510 W. TUSC, WARD 3, FOR ALTMAN BUCKEYE COMPANY II PARTNERSHIP)
- O#13. (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CANTON TO ANNEX THE TERRITORY KNOWN AS THE HOF VILLAGE #7 ANNEXATION AREA CONTAINING APPROXIMATELY 0.138 ACRES, MORE OR LESS; ASSIGNING SAID TERRITORY TO WARD 7 OF THE CITY; ZONING SAID TERRITORY AS HALL OF FAME VILLAGE DISTRICT (HOFV); AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY **PUB HRG 7/12/21 @ 7:00 PM**
- O#14. (2ND RDG) **ADOPTED AS AMENDED AS ORDINANCE NO. 124/2021** AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO: ADVERTISE AND RECEIVE BIDS FOR A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT, AWARD AND EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES AND RECEIVE GRANT FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF \$1,500,000.00 FOR THE CANTON SOUTH WATERLINE EXTENSION – PHASE 2 PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE AUDITOR TO CREATE THE 5246 CANTON SOUTH WATERLINE EXTENSION – PHASE 2 PROJECT FUND; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #14.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Majority Leader, I believe we need to spend ...suspend the Statutory Rules...

MEMBER SMUCKLER: ...Oh ...

PRESIDENT SHERER: ...First ...

MEMBER SMUCKLER: I'm sorry. Mr. President, I move we suspend the Statutory Rules on Ordinance #14.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to suspend the Statutory Rules on Ordinance #14. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries. You've heard the three readings, Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #14.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #14. Are there any remarks? Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move to amend Ordinance #14 per the copy before every Council Member.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to amend Ordinance #14 per the copy before each of you. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, by voice vote, all those in favor signify by saying aye. Those opposed no.

NO REMARKS

AMENDMENT PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY VOICE VOTE

PRESIDENT SHERER: The ayes have it. The motion carries. Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt ...um ...Ordinance #14, as amended.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

AMENDMENT

Pursuant to Rule 36, I move to amend Agenda Item No. 14 by the substitution of the attached amended ordinance for the original pending ordinance.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #14 as amended. Are there any remarks under this Ordinance as amended? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#14 ADOPTED AS AMENDED AS ORDINANCE NO. 124/2021

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Ordinance #14, as amended, has been adopted.

ORDINANCES AND FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD AND FINAL READING

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their Third/Final Reading and Vote. Mr. Clerk, please begin with Ordinance #15.

NOTE: PRESIDENT SHERER CALLED UPON CLERK DOUGHERTY TO READ ORDINANCE #15 THROUGH ORDINANCE #20 FOR THEIR THIRD READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW, AS FOLLOWS: (ORDINANCE #15 POSTPONED UNTIL JULY 12, 2021)

*O#15. (3RD RDG) **POSTPONED UNTIL 7/12/21** AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NOS. 262/2015 AND 145/2017 TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF THE HALL OF FAME VILLAGE PROJECT SITE AS "EXISTING PROPERTY" IN THE AREA COVERED BY THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PROVISIONS OF OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 5709.40, EXEMPTING THE IMPROVEMENTS TO SAID "PROPERTY" FROM TAXATION DURING THE TERM OF THAT CERTAIN COMPENSATION AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE NOS. 262/2015 AND 145/2017 (COLLECTIVELY, THE "COMPENSATION AGREEMENT"), AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY*

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: I move we adopt Ordinance #15.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #15. Are there any remarks?

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we postpone Ordinance #15 until the next Council Meeting on July 12, 2021.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to postpone Ordinance #15 until the next Council Meeting on July 12, 2021. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, by voice vote, all those in favor signify by saying aye. Those opposed no.

NO REMARKS

POSTPONEMENT PASSED UNANIMOUSLY BY VOICE VOTE

PRESIDENT SHERER: The motion carries and Ordinance #15 is postponed until July 12, 2021. Ordinance #16, please.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

O#16. (3RD RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 125/2021** AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY TO ACCEPT GRANT FUNDS FROM HARTFORD FINANCIAL SERVICES; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$35,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 1001 GENERAL OPERATING FUND TO 1001 103001 FIRE ADMIN – OTHER)

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #16.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #16. Are there any remarks?
...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#16 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 125/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Motion carries and Ordinance #16 is adopted. Ordinance #17, please.

O#17. (3RD RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 126/2021** AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 49/2021; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (\$99,615.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 1001 GENERAL OPERATING FUND TO 1001 200501 GENERAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT – OTHER; \$99,615.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 7601 HEALTH FUND TO 7601 301001 HEALTH ADMIN – OTHER; \$99,615.00 INTER-FUND TRF FR 1001 GENERAL OPERATING FUND TO 7601 HEALTH FUND)

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move that we adopt Ordinance #17.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #17. Are there any remarks?
...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#17 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 126/2021

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Motion carries and Ordinance #17 is adopted. Ordinance #18, please.

O#18. (3RD RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 127/2021** AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 749, ITINERANT RETAILERS OF PART SEVEN BUSINESS REGULATION CODE

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #18.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #18. Are there any remarks?
...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#18 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 127/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Motion carries and Ordinance #18 is adopted. Ordinance #19, please.

O#19. (3RD RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 128/2021** AN ORDINANCE AMENDING EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE NO. 100/2011, AS AMENDED, THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR NON-BARGAINING UNIT PERSONNEL EMPLOYED BY THE CITY OF CANTON; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (2 VICTIM ADVOCATE POSITIONS FOR POLICE DEPT)

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #19.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #19. Are there any remarks?
...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#19 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 128/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Motion carries and Ordinance #19 is adopted. Ordinance #20, please.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

O#20. (3RD RDG) **ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 129/2021** AN ORDINANCE AMENDING EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE NO. 100/2011, AS AMENDED, THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR NON-BARGAINING UNIT PERSONNEL EMPLOYED BY THE CITY OF CANTON; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY (RENAME BENEFITS ADMIN TO HEALTH BENEFITS MANAGER)

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #20.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #20. Are there any remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

#20 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 129/2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Motion carries and Ordinance #20 is adopted.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under announcement of Committee Meetings and our next meeting will be July 12th at 6:30 PM.

MEMBER MARIOL: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Member Mariol.

MEMBER MARIOL: Finance and Environmental & Public Utilities Committees will meet ...I just forgot what date you said.

PRESIDENT SHERER: July 12th.

MEMBER MARIOL: July 12th at 6:15?

CLERK DOUGHERTY: 6:30

PRESIDENT SHERER: 6:30

MEMBER MARIOL: 6:30. Long Monday.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Member Mariol.

MEMBER SCHULMAN: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Member Schulman.

MEMBER SCHULMAN: Uh ...Judiciary Committee, same time, same place.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Member Schulman.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Member Babcock.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Personnel, same time, same place.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Member Babcock.

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

PRESIDENT SHERER: We are now under Miscellaneous Business. Is there any Miscellaneous Business for this evening?

JOHN STONE: So, if I could just add those seeds really need to be planted within the next week, so if you're not going to, please give it to someone who will and thank you for planting the future of history.

PRESIDENT SHERER: That will be duly noted, but Miscellaneous Business for ...is for the Council Members only, but thank you. Is there any other Miscellaneous Business for this evening?

MEMBER KIMBROUGH: Um ...I'd like ...May I...

PRESIDENT SHERER: Member Kimbrough.

MEMBER KIMBROUGH: Yes, I'd like to uh ...thank everybody that came out for the Juneteenth Festival. It was very nice at the Nimisilla Park. And I also want to thank Mr. Stone, who gave out those lovely ...um ...sunflower seeds to everyone, that they could plant for their Infinite Peace. Thank you very much.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Member Kimbrough. Is there any other Miscellaneous Business?

KIMBERLY BELL: Yeah, I'd like to say one more thing.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Ms. Bell, this is for the Council Members only, please.

KIMBERLY BELL: Well, he ...is he Council?

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: Ms. Bell, this is for ...Miscellaneous Business is for the Council Members only.

KIMBERLY BELL: Well...

PRESIDENT SHERER: ...We'll be more than happy to have a conversation with you after the meeting.

KIMBERLY BELL: Then why did he get to speak then?

PRESIDENT SHERER: Ms. Bell.

KIMBERLY BELL: (*Inaudible*).

PRESIDENT SHERER: Alright, moving on from Miscellaneous Business.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: And one last thing ...and

PRESIDENT SHERER: Majority Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Yeah, I do want to re ...I said it before and I want to make it ...remind everybody again ...uh ...please, if you can spare some time on Friday night, this is a worthwhile cause, to help educate kids in this community and we all know educating kids is top priority ...Ron Bloomberg, Skyland Pines, 5:00, first designated hitter in baseball with the New York Yankees. I do that right, Doc?

MEMBER FERGUSON: Yes you did. Thank you.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Thank you.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Thank you, Majority Leader. Clerk Dougherty ...

KIMBERLY BELL: ...Is it because I'm the wrong skin color ...he got to speak and I didn't?

MEMBER SMITH: Mr. President. Mr. President. (*Inaudible*).

PRESIDENT SHERER: Member Smith.

MEMBER SMITH: I'd just like for everyone to keep the family in prayer ...the little 5-year-old that lost his life, was accidentally hit by a car in my Ward on 14th St. and the family is really going through a thing right now. For those of you that do not know, her oldest son is on his way ...got a scholarship to Ohio State. He was the quarterback for the McKinley Bulldogs.

PRESIDENT SHERER: ...Wow ...

MEMBER SMITH: So, keep that family in prayer, please.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JUNE 21, 2021

PRESIDENT SHERER: We will definitely, Member Smith, we will definitely keep ...keep the family in our prayers. Clerk Dougherty, our quote for the week, please.

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Happy Father's Day to everyone. So my quote will be around that. "Any man can be a father, but it takes someone special to be a dad." – Anne Geddes

MEMBER SMUCKLER: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: Leader.

MEMBER SMUCKLER: I move we adjourn.

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second.

PRESIDENT SHERER: It's been moved and seconded to adjourn. Mr. Clerk, roll call vote, please.

NO REMARKS

ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS

CLERK DOUGHERTY: Ten yeas, Mr. President.

PRESIDENT SHERER: I want to thank everybody for coming this evening and this meeting is adjourned. (*Gavel falls*).

ADJOURNMENT TIME: 7:44 PM

ATTEST: 6/23/21
DAVID R. DOUGHERTY
CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED:
WILLIAM SHERER, II
PRESIDENT